## Table Of Contents

# 18.01.56 - Rebates And Illegal Inducements To Obtaining Title Insurance Business Rules

000.	Legal Authority.	2
001.	Legal Authority.  Title And Scope.	.2
002.	003. (Reserved).	.2
004.	Applicability.	.2
005.	Definitions.	.2
006.	Applicability.  Definitions 010. (Reserved).	.3
011.	Prohibited Things Of Value	3
	Permitted Consumer Information.	
013.	Permitted Advertising With Trade Associations.	.4
014.	Permitted Self-promotional Advertising.	.4
	Permitted Business Entertainment.	
	Locale Of The Title Insurer Or Title Insurance Agent Employees	
017.	Escrow Closing Charges And Premium Rates.	.5
018.	Penalty.	.6
019.	Dissemination.	.6
020.	Severability.	.6
	999 (Reserved).	

#### IDAPA 18 TITLE 01 Chapter 56

### 18.01.56 - REBATES AND ILLEGAL INDUCEMENTS TO OBTAINING TITLE INSURANCE BUSINESS RULES

#### 000. LEGAL AUTHORITY.

This Rule is promulgated pursuant to the general rule making authority in Idaho Code, Section 41-211, to aid in the effectuation of Idaho Code, Section 41-2708(3), and Idaho Code, Section 41-1314. (7-1-93)

#### 001. TITLE AND SCOPE.

The purpose of this Rule is to define certain fair trade practice standards for title insurance, the violation of which will constitute rebates and/or illegal inducements prohibited by Idaho Code, Sections 41-2708(3) and 41-1314. The Department of Insurance regulates the title insurance industry. It does not regulate producers of title business. Rule 18.01.56, "Rebates and Illegal Inducements to Obtaining Title Insurance Business," will interpret the anti-rebate and anti-illegal inducement statutes as applicable to the title insurance industry. This Rule has been thoroughly researched and is based in part on the rules of Idaho's neighbor states. In addition, written and oral comments and recommendations about the rule as well as testimony provided at five hearings conducted across the state have been carefully reviewed and have contributed to the provisions of IDAPA 18.01.56, "Rebates and Illegal Inducements to Obtaining Title Insurance Business". This Rule is intended to interpret broad anti-rebate and anti-illegal inducement statutes. The Rule was drafted after representatives of the title industry and producers of title business industries advised the Department that there was an accumulation of past and present abuses that had previously gone unreported. These entities asked the Department to step in and help rectify the situation and suggested in part that the establishment of guidelines as to what is an inducement and what is an illegal inducement would help stop past and present abuses and curtail future abuses. The guidelines can be referred to in the title entity's day to day business in interpreting what is an inducement and what is an illegal inducement. This guideline will also help the Department in its efforts to enforce the anti-rebate and anti-illegal inducement statutes. At no time has the Department of Insurance or its representatives stated that the standard practice of the title industry is to give collateral benefits and that the standard practice of the industries of producers of title business are to receive collateral benefits. The Department of Insurance recognizes as an undisputed fact that a producer of title business in most instances is involved with the consumer in assisting the consumer in the selection of a title company for title insurance services. The Department of Insurance also recognizes that abuses in the intricacies of this selection have occurred and do occur, and the occurrence of abuses is specifically acknowledged by the title industry and the Idaho Land Title Association. The Department of Insurance has taken and will continue to take action to reported violations. The Department's goal is to assure that the selection of a title company is made on the basis of the title company's ability to provide economy, promptness, accuracy and efficiency in its service. The elimination of "collateral benefits" with the interpretive guidance of IDAPA 18.01.56, "Rebates and Illegal Inducements to Obtaining Title Insurance Business," will help in accomplishing this goal -- a goal that establishes a uniform set of rules for all title entities and which ultimately benefits the consumer. (7-1-93)

#### 002. -- 003. (RESERVED).

#### 004. APPLICABILITY.

The provisions of this Rule shall apply to all title insurers and title insurance agents. This Rule does not limit the Director's authority to determine that other title insurance trade practices constitute violations of Idaho Code, Sections 41-2708(3) and 41-1314. (7-1-93)

#### 005. **DEFINITIONS.**

- **01. Business Of Title Insurance**. "Business of title insurance" has the meaning set forth in Idaho Code, Section 41-2704 and includes in addition thereto, the performance in this state by a title entity of any service in conjunction with the issuance of any contract or policy of title insurance. (7-1-93)
- **02. Person**. "Person" includes any natural person and any firm, association, organization, partnership, business trust, corporation or other legal entity. (7-1-93)
  - **O3. Producer Of Title Business.** "Producer of title business" includes any person engaged in this state

### IDAHO ADMINISTRATIVE CODE Department of Insurance

### IDAPA 18.01.56 Rebates and Illegal Inducements to Obtaining Title Insurance

in the trade, business, occupation or profession of: (7-1-93)

- a. Buying or selling interest in real property; or (7-1-93)
- b. Making loans secured by interest in real property; and (7-1-93)
- c. Shall include but not be limited to real estate agents, real estate brokers, mortgage brokers, lending or financial institutions, builders, attorneys, developers, subdividers, auctioneers engaged in the sale of real property, consumers, and the employees, agents, representatives, or solicitors of any of the foregoing. (7-1-93)
- **O4. Self Promotional**. "Self promotional" refers to either a promotional function which is conducted by a single entity or a promotional item intended for distribution by a single entity. All benefits from the promotional function or item must accrue to the entity promoting itself. (7-1-93)
- **05. Things Of Value**. "Things of value" means anything that has a monetary value and includes, but is not limited to, tangible objects, services, use of facilities, monetary advances, extension of lines of credit, creation of compensating balances, uncollected cancelation fees for issuance of title commitments, and all other forms of consideration.

  (7-1-93)
- **06. Trade Association**. "Trade association" means an association of persons, a majority of whom are producers of title business, or persons whose primary activity involves real property. (7-1-93)
- **07. Title Entity.** "Title entity" includes both title insurance agents and title insurers and their employees, agents, or representatives. (7-1-93)

#### 006. -- 010. (RESERVED).

#### 011. PROHIBITED THINGS OF VALUE.

A title entity shall not provide things of value to a producer of title business, consumer or member of the general public except as permitted in Sections 012, 013, 014, and 015 of this rule. If a providing of things of value does not clearly fit into the above four Rules, then it is a prohibited act. Exhibit 1, attached hereto, is a partial, but not all inclusive, list of acts and practices which are considered illegal inducements prohibited by Title 41, Idaho Code (the Idaho Insurance Code). (7-1-93)

#### 012. PERMITTED CONSUMER INFORMATION.

- **01. Information That May Be Provided**. Certain consumer information may be provided without charge to a producer of title business, consumer, or member of the general public, but is limited to the following information:

  (7-1-93)
- **02. Listing Package**. A single copy of a "listing package," "property profile," or similarly named packet of information. (7-1-93)
- a. A "listing package" shall consist of information relating to the ownership and status of title to real property, and may include a single copy of only the following four items: (7-1-93)
  - i. The last deed appearing of record, (7-1-93)
  - ii. Deeds of trust or mortgages which appear to be in full force and effect, (7-1-93)
  - iii. A plat map reproduction, and (7-1-93)
  - iv. A copy of applicable restrictive covenants. (7-1-93)
- b. A "listing package" may include no more than the four above described items of information and shall specifically not include tax information, parcel information, or market value information, or additions, addenda, or attachments which may be construed as conclusions reached by the title entity regarding matters of marketable

ownership or encumbrances. A generic cover letter with the printed standard letterhead of the title entity may be attached to the "listing package". The cover letter may include a brief statement identifying by name only, which of the four (4) permitted items of information are attached thereto. The cover letter may also contain a disclaimer as to conclusions of marketable ownership or encumbrances. The content of the cover letter or "listing package" is strictly limited to the foregoing and shall specifically not include any advertising or marketing for the benefit of the recipient.

c. Tax information, parcel information, or market value information, or additions, addenda, or attachments which may be construed as conclusions reached by the title entity regarding matters of marketable ownership or encumbrances may be provided, but only upon receipt of a charge commensurate with the actual cost of the work performed and the material furnished (See Exhibit 1, #1). (7-1-93)

#### 013. PERMITTED ADVERTISING WITH TRADE ASSOCIATIONS.

- **01. Advertisements.** No advertisement may be placed in a publication that is published or distributed by, or on behalf of, a producer of title business. Advertising in a trade association publication is only permitted if the publication is an official publication of the trade association with at least regular quarterly publications. The publications must be nonexclusive (any title entity must have an equal opportunity to advertise in the publication and at a standard rate). The title entity's ad must be purely self-promotional. (4-26-95)
- **O2. Donations.** A title entity is permitted to donate time to serve on a trade association committee and may also serve as an officer or director for the trade association. A title entity may also donate, contribute or otherwise sponsor a trade association event if the event is a recognized association event that generally benefits all members and affiliated members in an equal manner. The donation cannot benefit selected producer of title business members of the association unless through random process. Solicitation for the donation must be made of all members and affiliated members in an equal manner. Donations are per agent license or insurer and are limited to a cumulative donation value of two thousand dollars (\$2,000) or equivalent things of value collectively to all trade associations per year. (4-26-95)

#### 014. PERMITTED SELF-PROMOTIONAL ADVERTISING.

- value of less than five dollars (\$5) to producers of title business, consumers, and members of the general public. These self-promotional items are limited to novelty gifts, advertising novelties, and generic business forms and specifically do not include food or beverages. A generic business form is a title insurance or escrow related form of common usage. This form shall not contain the name of a producer of title business. A title entity shall only distribute novelty gifts, advertising novelties, or generic business forms in the regular course of business. Distribution may be by hand or by regular messenger service and may be mailed if the recipient is out of the title entity's county. A recipient of a novelty gift or advertising novelty shall not receive gifts or advertising novelties in excess of five (\$5) of cumulative value per month and no more than fifty dollars (\$50) of cumulative value of gifts or advertising novelties per year. A recipient of generic business forms shall not receive more than fifty (50) business forms per month and no more than twenty-five dollars (\$25) of cumulative value of forms per year. A title entity shall also not give novelty gifts, advertising novelties or generic business forms to producers of title business, consumers, members of the general public, or trade associations for redistribution by these entities. (4-26-95)
- **O2. Self-Promotional Functions**. Self-promotional functions are only permitted on the premises of the title entity, and are limited to the following three (3) types of functions: (4-26-95)
- a. Educational programs -- A title entity is permitted to conduct educational programs. The instructor for the educational program must be a full time employee of the title entity. A title entity is permitted to expend no more than two dollars (\$2) per person at an educational program. (4-26-95)
- b. Self-promotional programs--A title entity is permitted to conduct self-promotional programs only for title insurance or escrow related matters. A title entity must not expend more than two dollars (\$2) per person at a self-promotional program. (4-26-95)
  - c. Open houses -- A title entity is permitted to have two (2) open houses per year. An open house shall

be a self-promotional function at the title entity's owned or occupied facility (e. g. a Christmas party or any party, an open house for remodeling of its facility, an open house for a new building to become the title entity's facility). It shall be nonexclusive (an open invitation to all producers of title business is required). A title entity must not expend more than seven dollars and fifty cents (\$7.50) per guest per open house. A title entity cannot combine permitted expenditures for two (2) open houses to be used for one (1) open house. A title entity also cannot accumulate left over or unused expenditures from one (1) open house and use those expenditures for a second open house. (4-26-95)

#### 015. PERMITTED BUSINESS ENTERTAINMENT.

A title entity may entertain a producer of title business in a single day with a choice of meals and/or events not to exceed fifty dollars (\$50) expense per individual per day according to the following guidelines: (4-26-95)

- **01. Meals**. A title entity may entertain no more than four (4) persons from an office of one (1) producer of title business in a single day. This entertainment function may take place on or off the title entity's premises, but is restricted to one (1) meal per day for each of the four (4) persons from one (1) office. Business meals shall include all meals and/or drinks, including but not limited to breakfast, brunch, lunch, dinner, cocktails. A title entity shall not expend more than fifty dollars (\$50) per person for a meal. Also, no more than ten dollars (\$10) total transportation cost from the client's place of business shall be expended. It must be emphasized that no more than four (4) persons from an office of one (1) producer of title business can be entertained by a title entity in any one (1) day and only for a choice of one (1) business meal.
- **62. Events.** A title entity may entertain no more than four (4) persons from an office of any producer of title business in a single day. This entertainment function may take place on or off the title entity's premises, but is restricted to one (1) event per day for each of the four (4) persons from one (1) office. An event shall include, but not be limited to, sporting events, sporting activities, and music and art events. The dollar limitation on event expenditures is limited to the admission price or fee to participate in the event, but shall not exceed fifty dollars (\$50) per person. Also, no more than ten dollars (\$10) total transportation costs from the client's place of business shall be expended. It must be emphasized that no more than four (4) persons from an office of one (1) producer of title business can be entertained by a title entity in any one (1) day and only for a choice of one event. (4-26-95)

#### 016. LOCALE OF THE TITLE INSURER OR TITLE INSURANCE AGENT EMPLOYEES.

A title entity shall not have any of its employees working in a work space location owned or leased by a producer of title business unless: (7-1-93)

- **O1. Bona Fide Agreement**. The space is secured by a bona fide written lease or rental agreement. (7-1-93)
- **02. Separate and Secured Space**. The space is separate from and can be secured against access by other occupants of the premises. (7-1-93)
- **03. Fair Market Rental**. The rental paid for the workspace is consistent with prevailing rental payments for similar space in the market area of the location of the work space. (7-1-93)
- **04. Rental By Trade Or Barter Prohibited**. The rental is not dependent on volume of business and is paid only in cash (rental cannot be paid by trade or barter). (7-1-93)
- **05. Premises Open To All Business**. The space is open to the conduct of business with any producer of title business or consumer. (7-1-93)
  - **06. Sharing Of Employees**. There is no sharing of employees. (7-1-93)
- **O7. Common Usage Of Spare Or Equipment**. There is no common usage of space or equipment between the title entity and the producer of title business without a proportionate share of cost, rent, or expense paid by each party. (7-1-93)

#### 017. ESCROW CLOSING CHARGES AND PREMIUM RATES.

A title entity shall not charge less than the rate as filed with the Department of Insurance for a specified title or escrow service or for a policy of title insurance. A specified title service is any service defined in the title entity's filed

schedule of rates and charges or the schedule in use by the title entity. A title entity shall also not waive or offer to waive all or any part of the title entity's established fee or charge for services which are not the subject of rates filed with the Department of Insurance. A filed charge or rate shall not be less than the title entity's cost for providing that service. Rates shall not reflect credits of any kind applicable with regard to different classifications of customers or to types of closings. Rates shall be filed with justification in accordance with Idaho Code, Section 41-2706. Justification shall clearly demonstrate that the title entity's filed rates for escrow services are not less than the title entity's cost to provide the escrow services. Escrow rates shall be refiled on or before December 15, 1988 establishing a title entity's basic rate including a minimum and negotiable rate. However, a title entity shall utilize its basic rate, minimum rate, and negotiable rate with respect to different classifications of customers or to types of closings effective December 1, 1988. Escrow rates shall be filed thereafter on a yearly basis due March 15 reflecting experience based on the calendar year. The first yearly filing will be due March 15, 1990 reflecting experience from January 1, 1989 to December 31, 1989. In addition, rates shall be filed as often as necessary if escrow costs exceed escrow revenues. Rates may also be filed in addition to the yearly filing for filings to increase revenues. Rate filings in these instances shall be filed at least thirty (30) days prior to implementation. All rate filings shall be based on twelve months experience. (7-1-93)

#### 018. PENALTY.

This Section shall emphasize and restate the general penalties authorized pursuant to Title 41, Idaho Code, (the Idaho Insurance Code) for violations of the anti-rebate and anti-illegal inducement laws. (7-1-93)

- **01. Section 41-2708(3), Idaho Code.** Section 41-2708(3) provides that each person and entity giving or receiving a rebate, illegal inducement, or a reduction in rate shall be liable for three (3) times the amount of such rebate, illegal inducement, or reduced rate. In addition to this penalty, a title entity may also be subject to an administrative penalty as outlined below. (7-1-93)
- **02. Section 41-327, Idaho Code.** Section 41-327 provides that the Director may impose an administrative penalty not to exceed five thousand dollars (\$5,000) and/or suspend or revoke an insurer's certificate of authority if the Director finds, after a hearing thereon, that the insurer has either violated or failed to comply with the Insurance Code.

  (7-1-93)
- **03. Section 41-1077, Idaho Code**. Section 41-1077 provides that the Director may impose an administrative penalty not to exceed one thousand dollars (\$1,000) and/or suspend or revoke an agent's license if the Director finds, after a hearing thereon, that the agent has either violated or failed to comply with the Insurance Code. (7-1-93)

#### 019. DISSEMINATION.

All title entities are instructed to distribute a copy of this Rule to every employee that may be engaged in activities requiring knowledge of its contents, and to instruct all employees in its scope and operation. (7-1-93)

#### 020. SEVERABILITY.

If any provision of this Rule is for any reason held to be invalid, the remainder of the Rule shall not be affected thereby. (7-1-93)

#### 021. -- 999. (RESERVED).

#### **EXHIBIT 1**

A title entity shall not provide things of value except as provided in Sections 012, 013, 014, and 015 of this rule. The following is a partial, but not all inclusive, list of acts and practices which are considered illegal inducements prohibited by the Idaho Insurance Code:

- 1. A title entity shall not sponsor any activity off its premises unless the producer of title business bears the entire cost of the activity. A title entity shall not cosponsor, subsidize, contribute fees, prizes, gifts, or otherwise provide things of value for a promotional function off the title entity's premises regardless whether the function is self-promotional or not. Off premises functions/activities include, but are not limited to, meetings, luncheons, dinners, conventions, installation ceremonies, celebrations, outings, or related activities of producers of title business, cocktail parties, hospitality room functions, open house celebrations, dances, fishing trips, motor vehicle rallies, sporting events of all kinds, gambling trips, hunting trips or outings, golf tournaments, artistic performances, and outings in recreation areas or entertainment areas. It shall be the burden of the title entity to be prepared to present documentation to the Department of Insurance that no things of value were provided.
- 2. A title entity shall not sponsor, subsidize, supply prizes or labor, or otherwise provide things of value for promotional activities of producers of title business. This does not prevent a title entity from attending activities of producers of title business if there is no cost to the title entity other than the title entity's own entry fees, registration fees, meals, etc., and provided that these fees are no greater than those charged to producers of title business.
- 3. A title entity shall not provide or offer to provide, either directly or indirectly, a compensating balance or deposit in a lending institution either for the express or implied purpose of influencing the extension of credit by such lending institution to any such person, or for the express or implied purpose of influencing the placement or channeling of title insurance business by such lending institution.
- 4. A title entity shall not pay or offer to pay, either directly or indirectly, with respect to any producer of title business for:
- a. the services of an outside professional whose services are required by any producer of title business to complete or structure a particular transaction;
  - b. the salary of an employee of such producer of title business;
- c. the salary or any part of the salary of a relative of any producer of title business employed by a title entity, if the payment is in excess of the reasonable value of the work actually performed;
- d. a fee for making an inspection or appraisal of property, whether or not the fee bears a reasonable relationship to the services performed;
- e. services required to be performed by any producer of title business in his or her professional capacity (e. g. the drafting of documents that are required to be filed by such producer of title business with the title entity for the initiation of closing and settlement services);
- f. any evidence of title or a copy of the contents thereof which is not produced or issued by the title entity, if the evidence or the title relates to a current transaction;
  - g. the rent for all or any part of the space occupied by any producer of title business;
  - h. money, prizes, or other things of value in any kind of a contest or promotional endeavor;
  - i. any advertising effort made in the name of, for, or on behalf of any producer of title business;
  - j. any business form of any such producer of title business other than a form regularly used in the

conduct of the title entity's business, which form is furnished solely for the convenience of the title entity and does not constitute a benefit to the producer of title business; or

- k. any salary, commission, or any other consideration to any employee who is at the same time actively engaged as a real estate licensee in the real property or mortgage brokerage business or is actively engaged in any other business of a producer of title business; or
- l. the cancellation fee, the fee for the preliminary title report or other fee on behalf of any producer of title business before or after inducing such producer of title business to cancel an order with another title entity.
- 5. A title entity shall not furnish, or offer to furnish, all or any part of the time or productive effort of any employee of the title entity (example: office manager, escrow officer, secretary, clerk, messenger, etc.) to any producer of title business. This provision is not intended to effect the title entity's day to day business with producers of title business. It is directed at title entity employees being utilized by, or "loaned" out to a producer of title business for the self-promotional interests of the producer of title business.
- 6. A title entity shall not furnish, or offer to furnish, pay for, or offer to pay for, furniture, office supplies including file folders, telephones, equipment, or automobiles to any producer of title business, or pay for, or offer to pay for, any portion of the cost of renting, leasing, operating, or maintaining any of the aforementioned items.
- 7. A title entity shall not provide, or offer to provide, non title services (example: computerized bookkeeping, forms management, computer programming, trust accounting) or any similar benefit to a producer of title business, without charging for and receiving a fee commensurate for services provided (e. g. a fee for trust accounting shall be a like fee charged by state or federally chartered banks or savings and loan associations in the local area). This provision also does not prevent title entities from contracting with trade associations to provide non-title services for a profit (i.e. MLS services).
- 8. A title entity shall not provide gifts or other things of value in connection with congratulations to a producer of title business. A letter or card in these instances will not be interpreted as providing a thing of value.
- 9. A title entity shall not waive a cancellation fee, fail to charge for a cancellation fee, or otherwise fail to make efforts to collect a cancellation fee from the recipient of services provided by the title entity.
- 10. A title entity shall not furnish any part of its facility (e. g. conference rooms, meeting rooms, etc.) to a producer of title business or trade association without receiving a fair rental charge commensurate with the average rental for similar facilities in the area.
- 11. A title entity shall not furnish reports containing publicly recorded information, appraisals, estimates, or income production potential, information kits or similar packages containing information about one or more parcels of real property (other than as permitted in Section 012) helpful to any producer of title business, consumer, or member of the general public without making a charge that is commensurate with the actual cost of the work performed and the material furnished (e. g. "farm packages", lot book reports, tax information, title commitments).
- 12. Delivery service between a title entity and a producer of title business shall be conducted by the title entity's regular messenger service and shall only involve the delivery of items from a title entity to a producer of title business or from a producer of title business to a title entity.

# Subject Index

6

${f A}$	Section 41-327, Idaho Code,		
Advertisements 4	Administrative Penalty Not To		
Applicability 2	Exceed Five Thousand Dollars		
	Self Promotional 3		
В	Self-Promotional Functions 4		
Bona Fide Agreement 5	Self-Promotional Items 4		
Business Of Title Insurance 2	Separate And Secured Space 5		
	Severability 6		
$\mathbf{C}$	Sharing Of Employees 5		
Common Usage Of Spare Or	Sharing Of Employees 3		
Equipment 5	T		
_	Things Of Value 3		
D	Title And Scope 2		
Definitions 2	Title Entity 3		
Dissemination 6	Trade Association 3		
Donations 4	Trade Association 5		
T			
E			
Escrow Closing Charges And Premium			
Rates 5			
Events 5			
Exhibit 1 7			
F			
Fair Market Rental 5			
ran Market Kentar 3			
$\mathbf{L}$			
Legal Authority 2			
Listing Package 3			
Locale Of The Title Insurer Or Title			
Insurance Agent Employees 5			
$\mathbf{M}$			
Meals 5			
P			
Penalty 6			
Permitted Advertising With Trade Associations 4			
Permitted Business Entertainment 5			
Permitted Consumer Information 3			
Permitted Self-Promotional			
Advertising 4			
Person 2			
Premises Open To All Business 5			
Producer Of Title Business 2			
Prohibited Things Of Value 3			
R			
Rental By Trade Or Barter			
Prohibited 5			
$\mathbf{S}$			
Section 41-1077, Idaho Code,			
Administrative Penalty Not To			
Exceed One Thousand Dollars 6			
Section 41-2708(3), Idaho Code,			
Penalty For Giving Or Receiving A			
Rebate, Illegal Inducement Or A			
Reduction In Rate 6			